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2019 99,501,492 | 14,408,811 98.86 14,316 9,737
2020 93,722,480 | 13,571,952 101.45 14,691 10,010
2021 78,600,643 | 11,382,159 100.40 14,539 9,994
2022 52,236,397 | 7,564,353 101.49 14,697 10,030
2021 10 75,785,043 | 10,974,432 100.39 14,537 9,973
11 73,572,740 | 10,654,068 100.23 14,514 9,990
12 71,971,193 | 10,422,148 100.61 14,569 10,015
2022 69,712,550 | 10,095,074 101.08 14,637 10,062
69,120,599 | 10,009,354 101.12 14,643 10,067
58,924,908 | 8,532,916 101.40 14,684 10,066
56,563,053 | 8,190,896 101.72 14,730 10,053
52,236,397 | 7,564,353 101.49 14,697 10,030
48,086,510 | 6,963,408 100.66 14,577 9,887
48,167,032 | 6,975,068 101.09 14,639 9,931
44,203,612 | 6,401,125 100.16 14,504 9,771
36,359,228 | 5,265,180 88.11 12,759 8,350
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627,640 2,000 625,640
2018 11 15 2019 (627,640) (2,000) (625,640)
77,120 156,310 546,450
2019 2020 (77,120) (156,310) (546, 450)
131,380 141,470 536,360
2020 2021 (131, 380) (141,470) (536, 360)
23,510 198,430 361,440
2021 2022 (23,510) (198,430) (361,440)
419,860 0 419,860
2018 11 15 2019 (419,860) ©) (419,860)
17,880 25,700 412,040
2019 2020 (17,880) (25,700) (412,040)
57,850 197,550 272,340
2020 2021 (57,850) (197,550) (272,340)
31,650 104,500 199,490
2021 2022 (31,650) (104,500) (199,490)
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2022 31
2022 31
2022
49,830,698 2,3 51,824,553 7,504,714
2 298,251 43,190
168,350 2 160,373 23,224
64,901 9,398
52,348,078 7,580,525
92 13
6 111,589 16,159
111,681 16,173
52,236,397 7,564,353
NAV
36,682,461
361,440 101.49 14,697
NAV
2,000,936,062

199,490 10,030

2022 27

99/252



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 31
2022
6,071,226 879,174
5 (643,942) (93,249)
5,427,284 785,925
288 42
288 42
616 89
12,000 1,738
17,690 2,562
247,598 35,855
13,853 2,006
10,000 1,448
424,448 61,464
29,410 4,259
10,639 1,541
95,142 13,778
861,396 124,739
4,566,176 661,228
(3,338,080) (483,387)
(50,353) (7,292)
27,926 4,044
(3,360,507) (486,635)
(3,788,620) (548,630)
(334) (48)
(3,788,954) (548,678)
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4,566,176 661,228
(3,338,080) (483,387)
(50,353) (7,292)
27,926 4,044
(3,788,620) (548,630)
(334) (48)
(2,583,285) (374,086)
(144,081) (20,864)
(144,081) (20,864)
23,510 2,371,509 343,418
31,650 2,895,643 419,318
198,430 (20,033,066) (2,900,988)
104,500 (8,870,966) (1,284,605)
(23,636,880) (3,422,857)
(26,364,246) (3,817,806)
78,600,643 11,382,159
52,236,397 7,564,353
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(374,086)

(532,160)
3,950,421
(785,925)
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548,630
7,036

5

(1,516)
(591)

22,755,347

3,295,202

6,199,022
(28,917,781)
(144,081)

897,680
(4,187,584)
(20,864)

(22,862,840)

(3,310,768)

(107,493)
566,117

(15,566)
81,979

458,624

66,413

85
(579)
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100.40 9,994
6.37 697
(4.98) (661)
1.39 36
(0.30) -

101.49 10,030
1.38% 0.37%

(1.22%) (1.24%)

(0.90%) (0.97%)

(2.12%) (2.21%)

6.31% 6.95%
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2022 31

2016 29

2018 10 17
2018
11 15

2022 31 59

2022 24
2022 31

GAAP GAAP
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ASC 946

GAAP

2022 31

NAV

2022 31
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ASC 740

more likely than not
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2022 31

51,824,553 51,824,553

51,824,553 51,824,553
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2021 536,360 272,340
23,510 31,650
(198,430) (104,500)
2022 31 361,440 199,490
100
10,000

100 100 10
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11

2022 31
144,081

2022 31
526,690

100

12,000

5,000
5,000
1,000

1,000

0.025
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0.35

10,000

0.50

0.10

2022 31
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750

1,020
1,137
15,857
15,438
850
27,177
1,172
48,938
111,589
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COVID-19
CovID-19
2022 31
2022 31
128.64500
2022 31
2022
2022 2022 27
6,080,997
2,092,769
2021
2022

2022 27

114/252

27

Ooooooooooooooooooad

30,369



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 31

NK CAT Bond Fund Class A JPY (Hedged)

Shares 192,454 16,591,852 31.76
NK CAT Bond Fund Class A USD Shares 302,686 35,232,701 67.45
: 49,830,698 51,824,553 99.21

JPY
usb
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3264 Re Ltd FRN 07-Feb-23

Alamo Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-25

Blue Halo Re Ltd FRN 24-Feb-25

Bowline Re Ltd 2019 FRN 20-Mar-23

Bowline Re 2018 Series A FRN 23-May-25
Everglades Re 11 Ltd FRN 14-May-24

Everglades Re Il Ltd FRN 19-May-25
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd A FRN 25-Feb-25
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd A FRN 27-Feb-26
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd B FRN 25-Feb-25
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd FRN 01-Mar-24

Galileo Re Ltd Series A FRN 08-Jan-27

Galileo Re Ltd Series C FRN 08-Jan-27

Galileo Re Ltd Series D FRN 08-Jan-27

Gateway Re Ltd FRN 12-May-25

Hestia Re Ltd A FRN 22-Apr-25

Integrity Re Ltd FRN 06-Jun-25

Kendall Re Ltd FRN 02-May-24

Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd FRN 20-Apr-26
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-23
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-24
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-23
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-24
Kilimanjaro Re Ltd 2018 1 FRN 05-May-26
Matterhorn Re Cat 0% 07-Dec-23

Mona Lisa Re Ltd FRN 08-Jul-25

Mona Lisa Re Ltd Series A FRN 09-Jan-23

Mona Lisa Re Ltd Series B FRN 09-Jan-23
Mystic Re Iv Ltd FRN 08-Jan-24

Mystic Re lv Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25

Northshore Re Il Ltd 18 1 A FRN 08-Jul-22
Northshore Re 11 Ltd FRN 07-Jul-26

Pelican IV Re Ltd FRN 07-May-24

Sanders Re Il Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-23
Sanders Re Il Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-27
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2,000,000 1,980,800 2.26
500,000 499,950 0.57
750,000 740,850 0.84

2,500,000 2,479,250 2.83
500,000 499,500 0.57

2,500,000 2,451,250 2.80
500,000 499,750 0.57

3,000,000 2,914,500 3.32

1,190,000 1,139,425 1.30
750,000 720,375 0.82

2,000,000 1,838,200 2.10

2,000,000 1,951,800 2.23

1,800,000 1,771,200 2.02
500,000 494,450 0.56
750,000 748,725 0.85
500,000 496,500 0.57
750,000 749,250 0.85

1,000,000 978,300 1.12
250,000 244,625 0.28

2,140,000 2,031,716 2.32

2,140,000 2,042,202 2.33

1,400,000 1,381,100 1.58
790,000 782,811 0.89

1,725,000 1,679,632 1.92

1,500,000 1,448,400 1.65

2,500,000 2,471,000 2.82

1,500,000 1,480,650 1.69

2,750,000 2,716,725 3.10

2,500,000 2,495,000 2.85

2,200,000 2,121,900 2.42

2,125,000 2,119,688 2.42

1,830,000 1,835,307 2.09

2,000,000 1,800,000 2.05

3,500,000 350 0.00

1,000,000 350,000 0.40
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2022 31 ()

Sierra Ltd FRN 31-Jan-24 600,000 592,200 0.68
Sutter Re Ltd Series F FRN 08-Jun-26 2,250,000 2,250,000 2.57
Tailwind Re Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 1,300,000 1,285,570 1.47
Tailwind Re Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 550,000 539,825 0.62
Titania Re Ltd A FRN 27-Dec-24 800,000 790,640 0.90
Torrey Pines Re Pte Ltd FRN 07-Jun-24 500,000 499,500 0.57
Torrey Pines Re Ltd FRN 06-Jun-25 2,600,000 2,573,220 2.94
Ursa Re Il Ltd FRN 06-Dec-24 3,000,000 2,877,300 3.28
Ursa Re Ltd C FRN 10-Dec-22 1,200,000 1,200,360 1.37
Vista Re Ltd FRN 21-May-24 2,250,000 2,227,050 2.54
Vista Re Ltd FRN 21-May-25 500,000 498,150 0.57
Yosemite Re Ltd FRN 06-Jun-25 500,000 500,000 0.57
( 71,378,757 ) 65,288,996 75.07

Caelus Re VI Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27 1,700,000 170 0.00
Residential Re 18 Ltd FRN 06-Dec-25 2,600,000 2,548,260 2.91
Residential Re 19 Ltd FRN 06-Jun-27 550,000 543,455 0.62
( 4,850,000 ) 3,091,885 3.53

Atlas Capital Re 2020 FRN 08-Jun-27 500,000 499,750 0.57
Atlas Capital Re 2022 DAC FRN 06-Jun-28 2,000,000 2,056,000 2.35
( 2,528,698 ) 2,555,750 2.92

Cosaint Re Pte Ltd FRN 03-Apr-24 1,500,000 1,483,650 1.69
First Coast Re 111 Pte FRN 07-Apr-25 2,500,000 2,442,500 2.79
Hexagon 111 Re Pte Ltd FRN 15-Jan-26 1,000,000 1,069,321 1.22
Manatee Re 11l Pte Ltd A FRN 07-Jun-22 900,000 135,000 0.15
Manatee Re 11l Pte Ltd B FRN 07-Jun-22 2,350,000 235 0.00
( 8,384,615 ) 5,130,706 5.85

IBRD Series B FRN 13-Jun-24 850,000 855,355 0.98
IBRD Series D FRN 13-Jul-24 650,000 658,060 0.75

( 1,500,000 ) 1,513,415 1.73
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2022 31 ()
Atlas Capital UK 2018 FRN 09-Jun-25 2,000,000 2,000,000 2.28
Atlas Capital UK 2019 FRN 08-Jun-26 2,000,000 2,019,400 2.30
Sussex Cap UK PCC Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 1,625,000 1,613,625 1.84

( 5,624,508 ) 5,633,025 6.42

( 94,266,578 ) 83,713,777 95.52
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
May 31, 2022

Notes
Assets
Imvestments m Master Fimd, fairvalue (Cost; USD49 830 698) 23
Cash
Foreign cureney cash (Cost: LIS 68 350)
Onther assets

=3 ¥

Total Assels

Liabilities

Interest payable

Fees payable [V
Total Liabilitie s

Net Assets

Net Asset Value ("NAV™) per unil - Class USD Units
{based on Net Assets of USD36,682 461 and 361 440 units owutstanding)

NAV per unit - Class JPY Hedged Units
(based on Net Assets of JPY 2000936,062 and 199490 units outstanding)

Signed on behalf of the Tnistee

Date: September 27, 2022

The accompamying notes form an miegral part of these financial statements.
8
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2022
UsD

51824553
298,251
160,373

64.901

52,348,078

—_—

92
111,589

111,681

—_—

52,236,397

USDI01.49

JPY 10,030
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Operations
For the vear ended May 31, 2022

022
Note USD
Inve stment income
Imterest income allocated from the Master Fund 6,071,226
Expenses allocated from the Master Fund 5 (643942
Net mvestment meome allocated from the Master Fund T 5427284
Fimd mierast meome 28R
Total fund mcome 288
Expenses
Inferast expense ala
Adminstration fees 12,000
Marmager fees 17,690
Irvestment Manager fees 247,598
At faes 13853
Trnstes faes 10,000
Distributor/Agent Company fees 424448
Legal fees 29410
Custodian fees 10,639
Other fees and expenses 95142
Total fimd expenses Binl 39
Net investment income 4,566,176
Netrealized loss and change in unre alized de preciation
Realized loss:
Imvestments in securnties, foreign currency trarsactions and
forward curreney contracts allocated from the Master Fund {3338,080)
Irvestments i seeunties (50.353)
Foreign currency fransactions 27926
Met realized loss (3.360.507)
Change in wnrealized depreciation:
Imvestments in secunties, foreign curmeney tramsactions and forward
curreney contracts allocated from the Master Fund {3,788,620)
Foreign currency transaclions {334)
Met change in unrealized depreciation {3,788.954)
Netrealized loss and change in unre alized de preciation (7,149,461)
Net decrease inNet Assets resulting from operations siiﬁﬁjilﬁ

The accompaming notes form an mtegral part of these francial statements.

9
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the vear ended May 31, 2022

022
USD
Net decrease inNet Assels resulting from operations
Met mvestment meome 4.506,1 Ta
Metrealzed loss on imvestments in securities, foreign cwrrency transactions
and forward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund {3338,080)
Metrealzed loss onimvestments in securities (50.353)
Netrealzed gain on foreign currency ransachons 27926
Net change in unrealized depreciation on mvestments m seewrities, foreign
curreny transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund {3.788.620)
Met change in unrealized depreciation on foreign currency transactions {334)
Net decrease in Net Assets resulting from operations (2,583,285
Distributions to Unitholders:
Class USD Urnts (144081}
(144081)
Capital Transactions
Units issued - Class USD Umnits (23,510 urnits) 2371,509
Units issued - Class JPY Hedged Units (31,650 units) 2895043
Umts redeemed - Class USD Urnits (198430 urmts) (20,033.006)
Umts redeemed - Class JPY Hedged Urnts (104,500 urats) !E,E.'-U,‘lég:_l
Net decrease m Met Assets resulting from capital transactions (23,636,382!
Total decrease in Net Assets (26.364,246)
MNet Assets
Begmning of vear T8,600.643
End of year 52,236,397

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

10
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows
For the vear ended May 31, 2022

2022
USD
Cash flows from operating activities
Met decrease m Net Assets resulting from operations (2,583,285
Adpstments to reconcile net decrease in Net Assets resulting from
operations to net cash provided by operating activiies:
Purchase of investments in the Master Fund {3.674,883)
Sale of mvestments m the Master Fund 27280027
Netinvestment income allocated from the Master Fumd {5427284)
Met realized loss on investments in secunities, foreign currency transactions
and forward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund 3,338,080
Netchange in unrealized depreciation on imestments in secwrities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund 3,788,620
Change in assets and liabilities related to operations:
Decrease m other assets 48,586
Increase n interest payable 37
Diecrease in fees payvable {10,468)
Drecrease in other pavables {4,083)
Net cash provided by operating activities 22755347
Cash flows provided by financing activities
Proceeds from wumts issuad 6,199,022
Payments for units redeemed (28,917,781}
Diistributions  paid (144,081
Net cash used in financing activities (22 Ba2 BA0Y
Met change in cashand foreign currency cash (107,493)
Cash and foretgn ewrrency cash at beginning  of year 566,117
Cashand foreign currency cash at end of vear 458,624
Supplementary information:
Interest receved RS
Interest paid (579

The accomparming notes form an mtegral part of these financial statements.

11

122/252



EDINETOOOO

o = 2573

NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Financial Highlights
For the vear ended May 31, 2022

Per Unit operating performance :
NAV per unit, beginning  of year

Income from mvestment operations (B)
Met investment income

Met realized and change in wrealizad loss
Total from ivestment operations
Diastribubions
NAV per umt, end of vear
Total Return (A)

Ratios/supple mental data:

Ratio of expenses to average Met Assets (A)
Series Trust expenses

Allocated from the Master Fund

Oiperating expenses
Total expenses

Ratio of net mvestment meome to average Net

Assets (A)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Class JPY
Class USD Hedged
Units U mits
UsD JPY
100.40 9004
68.37 97
(4.98) (661
1.39 35
(0,30 -
101.49 10,030
1.38% 0.37%
(1.22%) (1.24%3)
{0.90%) (.97%)
{2.12%) (2.21%)
0.31% 0.95%

{A) Total retun is calewlated based on the change in the NAV duning the vear. Expenses ratios
and net investment income ratics are caleulated based on the average Net Assets outstanding
throughout the vear. The financial highlights are reflected after all iwestment-related and
operating experses, Ratics between the two classes may vary due to class specific expenses.
The firancial highlights are reflected after all investment-related amd operating expenses,
meluding mcome and expenses allocated from the Master Furd.

(B} Results may vary based on the timing of capital transactions. Per umt nformation is
caleulated basedupon the monthly average wnits outstanding during the year.

The accompamying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2022

1. Descriptionofthe Trust

NK Premimn CAT Bond Fund (the “Senies Trust™) is a senes trust of Offshore Strategy Fund, an
open-ended unit trust established by a master trust deed dated July 29, 2016 (the “Master Trust
Deed”), under the Liws of the Cayman Islands. The Series Trust was constituted by a supplemental
trust deed (the “Supplemental Trust Deed™) dated October 17, 2018, wnder the laws of the Cayman
Islands. The Series Trust commenced operations on November 15, 2018,

International Manapement Services Ltd. (the “Manager™) serves as the Series Trust's Manager. The
Series Trust's assets are managed on a day-to-day basis by Franklin Templeton Japan Co., Lid (the
“Investment Manager™). SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator™) serves as the
Series Trust's Administrator.

The Serics Trust’s strategy is consistent with the strategy of NK CAT Bond Fund (the *Master
Fund™). The Senies Trust®s investment objective is to seek to achieve nsk adusted absolute retums
by gaining exposure to the performance of insurance linked bonds (being CAT Bonds). The Series
Trest seeks to achieve this mavestment olyective through myvestmg m the Master Fund, A ccordmgly,
the Series Trust acts as a feeder fund mio the Master Fund such that substantially all of the proceeds
from the sale of the Umts will be mvested m the Master Fund The Senes Trust owns 592 of the
Master Fund at May 31, 2022,

The Master Fund's financial statements are attached to and shonld be read in conpnetion with the
Seres Trust's fmancial statements.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trst Deed and the Master Trust Deed, GAS. (Cayiman)
Limited (the *“Trustec™) s named as Trustes of the Senes Trust.

On February 24, 2022, Russia lnmched a miltary nvasion nto Ukraime, Russia’s mvasion of Ulraine
carries significant risks for a world economy. There was no direct impact on the Seres Trust at vear
ended May 31, 2022

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policics

Basis of Pre paration

The aceompaming fmancial statements have been prepared n accordance with accounting principles
generally accepled n the Uniled States of America (“U.8. GAAP™). The preparation of financial
statements in accordance with U8, GAAP requires the Series Trust's management to make estimates
ard assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and abilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses durimg the reporting penod. Actual results, meluding  the ulimate amount realized upon the
sale of fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be

significant.
The Series Trust 15 an owestment compamy and accordingly follows the Investment Company

accowrting and reporting guidance of the Financial Accownting Standards Codification  (“ASC™) 946,
Fimancial Services-Investment Companies.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2022
{ Contined)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continue d)

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Series Trust in
preparing the financial statements:

Valuation of Inve stments
The following valuation policy is apphed in determination of the value of the Series Tnst's

nvestments:

The Series Trust mvests solely n the Master Fund whose objective s to seek to achieve nsk
adpsted absclute retums by mvesting m CAT Bonds. The Master Fund will seek to achieve its
investment objective by mvesting mainly i a global portfolio of CAT Bonds which will mainly
provide exposure to natural catastrophe events and other life and non-life nswrance linked nsk
incheling bt not hmited to hfe insurance, motor mswrance, operational sk, and manne and
aviation and evber risk.

CAT Bonds, although often listed or quoted on a securities exchange, are not ordinarily traded
or exchanged through such securities exchanges or at the price available on such securitics
exchanges, Accordingly, CAT Bonds will be vahied wsing indicative secondary market bicd
prices provided by reputable brokers of other competent persons selected in good faith by the
Master Fund's investment manager.

Imvestments in the Master Fund were valued, as a practical expedient, wtilizing the unaudited
net asset vahations provided by admimstrators, without adjustment, when the net asset
valutons of the mvestments are caloulated m a mamer consstent with ULS. GAAP. The
attached audited fnancial statememnts of the Master Fund, which mchude the Master Fumd's
vahmtion and significant accounting policies are an infegral part of these financial statements
and should be read in conumction with the Senes Trust's fimncial statements. The
proportionate share of income, expenses, gains and losses of the Master Fund s diselosed i the
Series Trust's Statement of Operations for the year ended May 31, 2022,

The Series Trust records its investment in the Master Fund at fair value, based on the NAV per
share as reported by the Master Fund Vahation of finmncial mstruments held by the Master
Fund are discussed in Mote 2 in the Notes to the May 31, 2022 Financial Statements of the
Master Fund.

Inve stment Transactions and Inve stme nt Income

Imvestment transactions are accounted for on a trade-date basis (date the order to buy or sell is
executed). Gams and losses on the sale of mvestments are determned usmg the first e first out
cost method.

Inmterest income/expense on investments held’sold is acerued as eamed/incurred. Interest camed
on the Series Trust's brokerage account, if amy, will be accrucd monthly, Discounts and

premiums on Bonds are aceretedamortized to manerity on an effective vield basis and reported
as part of inferest meome in the Statement of Operations,

14
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2022
{ Contined)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continue d)

Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as incurred

Foreign Currency Translation

Iterms which are included in the Series Trust's financial statements, are measured wsing the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (the “fimctional currency™),
this s United States Dollar (“USD™).

The Series Trust does not solate that porion of the results of operations resulting from changes
in foreign exchange rates on mvestments from the fluchatons ansing from changes n market
prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are inchided with the net realized and wwrealized
gain or koss from mvestments.

Cashand Foreign Currency

The Trustee has appointed Sumitomo  Mitsud Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) as its sub-
custodian, Sumitomoe Mitsid Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch), has in tum, appointed
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH"™) as their global sub-custodian. Cash and foreign
cipreney comprise cash with onginal maturities of 3 months or less and are held at BBH as
banker.

Income Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman [slands, there are no income, withholding, capital gains
or other taxes payable by the Seres Trust. In certam pnsdietions other than the Cayman Islands,
foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and interest receved by the Series Trust.
Capital gains derived by the Series Trust in such prisdictions generally will be exermpt from
foreign income or withholding taxes at source capital gains tax (but may stll be subjeet to
capital gains tax in certain crcwnstances). The Series Trst intends 1o conduet its affairs such
that it will net be sulgeet to income taxin any unsdiction.  As a resull, no provision for income
taxes has been made in the financial statements. Unitholders may be taxed on their proportionate
share of the Series Trust"s tax basis ncome based on thelr individual circumstances.

The Senies Trust follows the awthoritative guidance on accounting for and dscloswe  of
unecertainty m tax positions (Finaneial Accounting Standards Board's ASC 740), which requires
management to determine whether a tax position of the Series Trust is more likely than not to
be sustained upon examimation by the applicable taxing awthority, inchuiling resolution of any
related appeals or litization processes, based on the technical ments of the position.

For tax posiions meeting the more hkely than not thresheld, the tax benefit recogrized on the
finaneial statements 15 reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent
likelihood of being realized wpon ultimate settlemnent with the relevant taxing authonty, The
Mamager has determined that there is no effect on the financial statements being under this
authoritative guadance,

15

126/252



3.

EDINETOOOO

o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2022
{ Contined)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continue d)

Guarantee s andior Inde mnifications

In the normal course of business the Manager, on behalf of the Senes Trust, enters into contracts
that contain a variety of representations, which provide general indenmifications, The
Manager's maximum exposire under these arrangements 5 unknown (although capped at the
NAV of the Senes Trust), as this would involve fuhure claims that may be made against the
Manager that have not vet occwrred However, based on experience, the Mamager expects the
risk of loss to be remate,

ASC 480
ASC 480, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabiliies and Equity”, recognizs redemptions as labilities, when the amount and munber of

wits requested in the redemption notice becomes fived. This generally may oceur at the ime
of the receipt of the notice, of on the last day of a fiscal penod, depending on the nature of the
request. Redemptions pavable may be treated as capital for purposes of allocations of
gairns/(losses) pusuant to the Serizs Trust's governing documents. As at May 31, 2022, there
were no redemptions payablz,

Fair Value M easure ments and Disclosure s

ASC 820, “Fair Vahe Measwrements and Disclosures™, provides additional puidance for
estimating fair vahe in accordance with ASC 820 when the volume and level of activity for the
asset or liability have significantly decreased amd provides gudance on identifying
crreumstances that mdicate a transaction 15 not orderly.

ASC BN establishes a fair value hierarchy that priorvitizes the inputs to vahmtion techniques
used to measure fair value, The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadiusted listed prices
in active markets for identical assets or labdities (Level | measurements) and the lowest
prionty tounebservable inputs (Level 3 measurements),

The three levels of the fair vale hisrarchy under ASC 820 are as follows;

- Level 1= Inpats that reflect madisted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilitizs that the Series Trust has the ability to access af the measurement date;

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or hability either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

= Level 3=Inputs that are unobservable.

Iputs are wsed moapphving  the varous valsation techmgues and breadly refer to the
assumphons that market participants use to make valuation decisions, meluding  assumphions
about risk. A fimancial mstrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any inpat that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Investment Manager
considers observable data to be that market data which is reacily available, regularly dstributed
or updated, relialde and venfiable, not proprietary and provided by independent sources that are
actively involved i the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instrument within the
hierarchy is based upon the pricing fransparency of the instrument and does not necessanly
correspond to the Investmment Manager's perceived risk of that instrument.
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3. Fair Value Measure ments and Disclosure s (continue d)

Imvestments whose valies are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified
within Level 1.

Cash and foretgn currency are classified as Level | with all receivables and payables classified
as Level 2.

Imvestments that trade m markets that are not considered to be active, but are valed based on
quoted market prnces, dealer quotations or altermative prieng sources supported by observable
mputs are classified within Level 2. As Level 2 mvestments include positions that are not traded
in active markets and'or are subject to transfer restrictions, valmations may be adusted to reflect
Miquidity and'or non-transferability, which are generally based on avallable market
information.

Ivestments classified within Level 3 have sigmficant unobservable mputs, as they trade
infrequenthy or not at all,

The following table presents the imvestment in the Sermes Trust carried on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities by level within the vahation hierarchy as of May 31, 2022

Level 1 Level? Leveld Total
Assets UsD UsD Ush UsD
Irvestment m Master Fund - 51,824,553 - 51824553
Total = 51,824,553 - 51,824,553

There were no transfers betweenthe levels during the vear.

4. Unit C “apital

Class JPY

Class USD Hedged

1 nits Units

Number of units outstanding at June 1, 2021 336,300 272,340
Units issued during the vear 23,510 31,630
Units redeemed during the vear (198.430) {104,500)
Number of units outstanding at May 31, 2022 361,440 199,490

One unitholder holds all of the Units attribitabde to Class USD Units and Class JPY Hadged
Upits,
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Unit Capital (continued)

Class USD Units were first issued at an initial issue price of USD100 per Unit, Class 1PY
Hedged Umnits were first issued at an initial issue price of JPY 10,000 per Unit. The minimnm
subscription amount per subscriber in respect of each class of unit is 100 units, and subscriptions
for more than 100 Units may only be made in ten Unit increments.

Subscription procesds resulting from the issue of USD Units will be invested in the Class A
USD class of Master Fund Shares. Subscription proceeds resulting from the ssue of JPY
Hedged Units will be mvested m the Class A JPY (Hedged) class of Master Fund Shares.

For subsequent subseriptions by existing unitholders, the purchase price per wmt will be the
NAV per Unit of the relevant class of units on the “Valuation Day™ (Valuation Day means each
Friday, and where such day is not a business day, the isiness day immediately following such
dav, and the last calendar day of each calendar month, and where such day is not a busmness
day, the business day immediately preceding such day, and'or such other day or days as the
Mamager may from time to time determine. For the avoidance of doubt, where the last calendar
day of the month s a Friday and also not a business day, the business day immediately
preceding the last calendar day of that month will be a Vahation Day) falling on the relevant
subscription cday,

The subscripion day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third Vahmtion Day of each
calendar month andior such other day or days that the Manager may from time to time
determine in respect of the Series Trust.

Units may be submitted for repurehase at the option of Unitholdders as at eachrepurchase day.
The repurchase day for the Senes Trust shall be the first and third Valation of each calendar
month andor such other day or days that the Manager may from time to time determine in
respect of the Senes Trust,

The NAV per Unit & caleulated by dividing the difference in vale betweenthe Series Trust's
assets and Habilities (incloding acerved fees and expenses of the Series Trust) by the number
of Units outstanding. In the normal cowurse of events, gains and losses associated with curreney
class hedging will be for the benefit or detrment of holders of the apphcable non-USD Master
Fimd Shares only.

The Manager may declare and arrange for the paviment of distributions i respect of any class
of urits of such amount (i amy) as shall be determined by the Manager, after consultation with
the Investment Manager, and approved by the Trustee.

The ex-distribation date will be the Valuation Day which immediately follows the relevant
distribation record date which is the second Friday of November in each vear, providing that if
such dayis not a business day then the mmediately follewing business day and'or such other
date or dates as the Manager may determine in respect of any class of Urnits. For the year ended
May 31, 2022, the Senies Trust distriuted USDI14408] in respect of Class USD Units and
there were no distributions in respectof Class JPY Hedged Units.
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5. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considerad to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party n making financial or operational decisions,
There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal cowrse of
business. The Mamger, Trustee and related companies (a company that controls or is controlled
by the Manager or the Trustee, often one that is in the same business group) are deemed to be
related to the Seres Trust, Fees incwrred with related parties during the vear are disclosed in
the Statement of Operations, Amounts payable to related partizs at the vear end are disclosed
n the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

The Investment Manager fee allocated from the Master Fund to the Series Trust as at May 31,
2022 s USDS526,600.

SMEC Nikko Securities Ine., holds 100% of all units m issue in the Class USD and Class JPY
Hedged. As a result, any actions of SMBC Nikko Secwrities Inc., can materially impact the
Series Trust,

6. Feesand Expenses

Administration Fees
The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USDI2,000 per anmum
of the NAV, accrued as of each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears.

The Admumstrator 15 also entitled to; (a) an establshment fee of USDA 000, (b) an annual fee
of USDS 000 m commection with provision of assistance in commection to the preparation of the
financial statements of the Series Trust, (¢) ananmul fee of USD L0 in connection with filing
the awdited accounts of the Series Trust with the Caymman Islands Monetary Authority, and (d)
an ammal fee of USD1LO00 in comnection with facihitating the Manager of its delegate in the
preparation of certain reports andor statements required for Japanese regulatory purposes.

Mamager Fees
The Manager receves out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.025% per anmun of the
MNAY, accruedand caleulated on each Vahumtion Day and paid monthly in arrears,

Inve stient Manager Fees
The Investment Mamager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.35% perarmmum
of the NAV, accrued and caleulated on each Vahation Day and paid monthly in arrears.

Trustee Fees

The Trstes receives ot of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USDI0000 per annum
accried as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly m arrears.

Distributor/Agent Company Fees

The Distributor receives out of the assets of the Senes Trust, a fee of 0.50% per anmm of the
NAV, accruedand calewlated on each Valmation Day and paid monthly in arrears.
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6. Feesand Expenses (continued)

Distributor/Agent Company Fees (continue d)
The Agent Company receives ouf of the assets of the Senies Trust, a fee of 0,10% per annum
of the WAV, acerued and caleulated on each Vahation Day and paid monthly in arrears.

Custodian Fees

The Custodian is entiled to receive, out of the assets of the Series Trust, mamagement and
transaction fees. The Custodian’s safe keeping fees are USD750 per month, accrued on each
Valuation Day and pavable monthly in arrears. The transaction fzes will be at customary rates
as agreed between the Trustee and the Custodian.

The fees payable as at May 31, 2022 are as follows:

UsD

Administration fees 1020
Manager fees 1137
Investment Manager fees 15857
At fees 15,438
Trustee fees 850
Dhstributor/ Agent Comparny fees 27177
Cistodian fees 1,172
Other fees and expenses 48,938
11 1I539

7. Financial Risk Management

The Series Trust's activiies expose it to & varety of financial risks: market risk (ncluding
currency risk), credit risk and bquidity nsk.

Market Rizk
The Series Trust mvests solely m the Master Fund Al mvestments present a nsk of loss of
capital. The Investment Manager moderates this nsk through a careful selection of nwestments.

The vahe of the Series Trust's mvestments are affected by a number of factors, nchuding  but
not Iimited  to, changes in the wider economy, financial and ewrrency markets and foreign
curreney exchange rates,

In a faling market environment, the value of the investments held by the Senies Trust may
decline, and as a result, the NAV may declne below its inifal principal amount. Also, adverse
developments I an issuer’s economic condiions or such negative events as bankruptcy may
cause the value of the equiies to decline substanhally and may sigmficantly impact the NAV.
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7. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Currency Risk

The Series Trust may hold monetary and non-monetary assets and incur monetary and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in eurrencies other than USD. It may therefore be exposed to
currency nisk, as the value of the assets and labilities denominated in other currencies will
fluctimte doe to changes in exchange rates.

If mvesting in the securities of companizs that are denominated in non-USD currencies, the
Series Trust may be exposed tonisks that the exchange rate of USD relative to other currencie s
may change m a manner that has an adverse effect on the reported value of these securities.

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust would incur if the counterparties
failed to perform pursuant 1o the terms of ther obligations to the Series Trust.

Although the Trustee monitors the Cistodian and believes it to be an appropriate custodian,
there is no guarantee that this or any custodian that the Senies Trust may use from time to time,
will not become insolvent, the result of which could lead to losses for the Series Trust,

While there are codes and acts to protect customer property in the event of a fathre, insolvency
or liquidation of an imstitution, there 5 no certainty that, in the event of a fathre of annstitution
that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Series Trust would not incur losses due to its assets
being wavailable for a period of time, ulfimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both,
Because all of the Series Trust's cash is m custody with a simgle institution, such losses could
be sigmficant and could matenally impair the ability of the Series Trust to achieve its
investment oljective, The Series Trust is subject to credit risk to the extent that this mnstitution
miay be wnabtde to fulfill its obligations  to repay amounts owed.

Liquidity Risk

Imvestors showld be aware that the value of units might fall as well as rise. Investment in the
Series Trust involves a degree of risk; there can be no assurance that the Series Trust’s
investment objective will be achieved

The Series Trust is exposed to repurchase of its umts but management believes that the Senes
Trust has sufficient rescurces to meet the present and foreseeable needs of its business
operations and, if necessary, the hqadity to find repurchases and achieve a market position
appropmiately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position s monitored  continually by
managerment to ensure that the Series Trust has the ability to meet its obligations.

The Sertes Trust may temporanly suspend the caleulation of the NAV and therefore, the nght
of redemptions and subscriptions  of offered Units in exceptional circumstances, No Bsue o

redemption of Units will take place during any period when the calewation of the NAVY is
suspended,
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Financial Risk Management (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continue d)

The nsk of being wable to redeem from the Master Fund s a Series Trust specific sk, The
potential inability to redeem out of the Master Fund is a risk for the Series Trust’s mvestors,
especially given the NAV ofthe Series Trust is denved from the ownership of the Master Fund.

COVID-19 Risk

Daring the year, a viral Cowvid-19 pandemic has contimeed to spread across the globe. It is
cawsing very significant fiemeial market, economie and social dislocation globally. The
ultimate extent of the effect of this on the Series Trust 15 not possible to estumate at this tme
and will only be finally determuned on realization of mwestments.

Commitments and Continge ncie
Asat May 31, 2022, the Series Trust had no commitments  or contingencies.

Exchange rates used in this Ke port

The followmg exchange rates were used to translate assets and habilities mto one USD as at
May 31, 2022:

Japanese Yen 128.64500
Recent Pronounce ments

There were no recent pronouncements dunng the year ended May 31, 2022,

Subse quent Events

Mamagement performed a subsequent events review up to September 27, 2022, which s the
date the fimancial staterments were avallable to be ssuad.

Effective June 1, 2022 through to September 27, 2022 inwestors subseribed USD30.369 in
respect of Class USD Units and there were no subscriptions in respect of Class JPY Hadged
Umnts mto the Senies Trust and mwvestors redeemed USDE0R0997 m respect of Class USD
Units and USD2,002.769 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units from the Senes Trust.

In September 2021, BEH ammommced that they have entered into anagreement with State Street
Corporation (“State Street”) under which State Street will acquire BBH's Investor Services
busmess; which meludes s custody, find accounting and admumstration,  ransfer agency,
depositary, foreign exchange and securihies lending services. The transaction 15 expected to be
completed in 2022, subject to cstomarny closing conditions and regulatory approvals,

Marmagement concluded that there were no other subsequent events which required additional
disclosure in these fimancial statements.

The fimancial statements were approved on September 27, 2022,
22
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Fair
Nominal Value %o of
Irve stment inthe Master Fund Holding UsD MAY
Caynan Islands
NE CAT Bond Find Class A JPY (Hedged)
IPY Shares 192,454 16,591,852 3. 7o
UsD NEKCAT Bond Fund Class A USD Shares 302,686 35232701 67.45
Total Investment in the Master Fund
(Cost: USD49,830,698) 51,824,553 99,21
Symbol Currency Country
JPY Japanese Yen Tapan
UsD U5, Dollar Umited States

The accompanying notes form an itegral part of these fimancial statements.
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Fair

Nominal Value % of
CAT Bonds Holding USD NAV
Bermuda
3264 Re Ltd FRN 07-Feb-23 2,000,000 1,980,800 226
Alamo Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-25 500,000 499,950 0.57
Blue Halo Re Ltd FRN 24-Feb-25 750,000 740,850 0.84
Bowline Re Ltd 2019 FRN 20-Mar-23 2,500,000 2,479,250 2.83
Bowline Re 2018 Series A FRN 23-May-25 500,000 499,500 0.57
Everglades Re 1T Lud FRN 14-May-24 2,500,000 2,451,250 2.80
Everglades Re 1T Ltd FRN 19-May-25 500,000 499,750 0.57
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd A FRN 25-Feb-25 3,000,000 2,914,500 332
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd A FRN 27-Feb-26 1,190,000 1,139,425 1.30
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd B FRN 25-Feb-25 750,000 720,375 0.82
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd FRN 01-Mar-24 2,000,000 1,838,200 2.10
Galileo Re Ltd Series A FRN 08-Jan-27 2,000,000 1,951,800 223
Galileo Re Ltd Series C FRN 08-Jan-27 1,800,000 1,771,200 2.02
Galileo Re Ltd Series D FRN 08-Jan-27 500,000 494,450 0.56
Gateway Re Ltd FRN 12-May-25 750,000 748,725 0.85
Hestia Re Ltd A FRN 22-Apr-25 500,000 496,500 0.57
Integrity Re Ltd FRN 06-Jun-25 750,000 749,250 0.85
Kendall Re Ltd FRN 02-May-24 1,000,000 978,300 1.12
Kilimanjaro III Re Ltd FRN 20-Apr-26 250,000 244,625 0.28
Kilimanjaro [II Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-23 2,140,000 2,031,716 232
Kilimanjaro I1I Re Ltd Serics A FRN 19-Dec-24 2,140,000 2,042,202 233
Kilimanjaro [11 Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-23 1,400,000 1,381,100 1.58
Kilimanjaro [T Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-24 790,000 782,811 0.89
Kilimanjaro Re Ltd 2018 1 FRN 05-May-26 1,725,000 1,679,632 1.92
Matterhorn Re Cat 0% 07-Dec-23 1,500,000 1,448,400 1.65
Mona Lisa Re Ltd FRN 08-Jul-25 2,500,000 2,471,000 2.82
Mona Lisa Re Ltd Series A FRN 09-Jan-23 1,500,000 1,480,650 1.69
Mona Lisa Re Ltd Series B FRN 09-Jan-23 2,750,000 2,716,725 3.10
Mystic Re Iv Ltd FRN 08-Jan-24 2,500,000 2,495,000 2.85
Mystic Re Iv Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 2,200,000 2,121,900 242
Northshore Re 11 Ltd 18 1 A FRN 08-Jul-22 2,125,000 2,119,688 242
Northshore Re 11 Ltd FRN 07-Jul-26 1,830,000 1,835,307 2.09
Pelican [V Re Lid FRN 07-May-24 2,000,000 1,800,000 2.05
Sanders Re II Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-23 3,500,000 350 0.00
Sanders Re II Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-27 1,000,000 350,000 0.40

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Continued)
Fair

MNominal Value Yo of
CAT Bonds (continued) Holding USD NAV
Bermuda (continued)
Sierra Ltd FRN 31-Jan-24 600,000 592,200 0.68
Sutter Re Lid Series F FREN 08-Jun-26 2,250,000 2,250,000 2.57
Tailwind Re Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 1,300,000 1,285,570 147
Tailwind Re Ltd FEN 08-Jan-25 550,000 539,825 0.62
Titania Re Ltd A FRN 27-Dec-24 800,000 790,640 0.90
Tomey Pines Re Pte Ltd FRN 07-Jun-24 500,000 499 500 0.57
Torrey Pines Re Ltd FRN 06-Jun-25 2,600,000 2,573,220 294
Ursa Re II Ltd FRN 06-Dec-24 3,000,000 2,877,300 3.28
Ursa Re Ltd C FRN 10-Dec-22 1,200,000 1,200,360 137
Vista Re Ltd FEN 21-May-24 2,250,000 2,227,050 2.54
Vista Re Ltd FRN 21-May-25 500,000 498,150 0.57
Yosemite Re Lid FRN 06-Jun-25 500,000 300,000 0.57
Total Bermuda (Cost: USD71,378,757) 65,288,996 7507
Cayman Islands
Caelus Re VI Ltd FEN 07-Jun-27 1,700,000 170 0.00
Residential Re 18 Lid FRIN 06-Dec-25 2,600,000 2,548,260 291
Residential Re 19 Ltd FRIN 06-Jun-27 550,000 543,455 0.62
Total Cayman Islands (Cost: USD4,850,000) 3,091,885 3.53
Ireland
Atlas Capital Re 2020 FRN 08-Jun-27 500,000 499,750 0.57
Atlas Capital Re 2022 DAC FEN 06-Jun-28 2,000,000 2,056,000 235
Total Ireland (Cost: USD2,528,698) 2,555,750 292
Singapore
Cosaint Re Pte Ltd FRN 03-Apr-24 1,500,000 1,483,650 1.69
First Coast Re Il Pte FRN 07-Apr-25 2,500,000 2,442,500 .79
Hexagon I Re Pte Ltd FRN 15-Jan-26 1,000,000 1,069,321 122
Manatee Re IT1 Pie Litd A FRN 07-Jun-22 900,000 135,000 015
Manatee Re [T Pte Ltd B FRN 07-Jun-22 2,350,000 235 0.00
Total Singapore (Cost: USDS,384,615) 5,130,706 585

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

28

136/252



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NK CAT BOND FUND
Schedule of Investments
May 31, 2022
{Continued)
Fair

Nominal Value % of
CAT Bonds (continued) Holding UsD NAV
Supranational
IBRD Series B FRN 13-Jun-24 850,000 855,355 0.98
IBRD Series D FEN 13-Jul-24 650,000 658,060 0.75
Total Supranational (Coat: USD1,500,000) 1,513,415 1.73
United Kingdom
Atlas Capital UK 2018 FRN 09-Jun-25 2,000,000 2,000,000 228
Atlas Capital UK 2019 FRN 08-Jun-26 2,000,000 2,019,400 2.30
Sussex Cap UK PCC Lid FRN 08-Jan-25 1,625,000 1,613,625 1.84
Total United Kingdom (Cost: USD5,624,508) 5,633,025 642
Total CAT Bonds (Cost: USD94,266,578) 83,713,777 95.52

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021 31
2021 31
2021
77,983,762 11,292,829
71,258,765 23
2 352,705 51,075
221,187 2 213,412 30,904
931,870 134,944
113,487 16,434
79,595,236 11,526,186
13,749 1,991
854,649 123,762
55 8
6 122,057 17,675
4,083 501
994,593 144,027
78,600,643 11,382,159
NAV
53,852,808
536,360 100.40 14,539
NAV
2,721,643,177

272,340 9,994

2021 24
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2021 31
2021
6,280,941 909,543
5 (689,536) (99,852)
5,591,405 809,691
72 10
72 10
869 126
11,966 1,733
19,213 2,782
268,751 38,918
19,558 2,832
10,000 1,448
460,590 66,698
30,523 4,420
12,197 1,766
101,192 14,654
934,859 135,377
4,656,618 674,325
(1,259,892) (182,445)
192,568 27,886
(200,245) (28,997)
(1,267,569) (183,557)
(425,385) (61,600)
(9,127) (1,322)
(434,512) (62,922)
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(1,702,081) (246,478)

2,954,537 427,847
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2021 31
2021

4,656,618 674,325
(1,259,892) (182,445)

192,568 27,886
(200,245) (28,997)
(425,385) (61,600)
(9,127) (1,322)

2,954,537 427,847
(2,804,856) (406,171)
(948,591) (137,365)
(3,753,447) (543,537)

131,380 13,249,528 1,918,664

57,850
5,495,928 795,865
141,470
(14,514,388) (2,101,829)
197,550

(18,553,995) (2,686,804)
(14,322,927) (2,074,103)
(15,121,837) (2,189,793)

93,722,480 13,571,952

78,600,643 11,382,159
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2021

2,954,537

(15,493,633)
35,521,690
(5,591,405)

1,259,892
425,385
57,814

32

(11,122)
4,083

Ooooooooooooooooooad

427,847

(2,243,633)
5,143,896
(809,691)

182,445
61,600
8,372

5

(1,611)
591

19,127,273

2,769,820

17,813,586
(33,054,634)
(3,753,447)

2,579,585
(4,786,642)
(543,537)

(18,994,495)

(2,750,593)

132,778
433,339

19,228
62,752

566,117

81,979

73
(837)
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101.45 10,010
6.07 645
(1.42) (211)
4.65 434
(5.70) (450)

100.40 9,994
4.58% 4.33%

(1.22%) (1.22%)

(0.89%) (0.94%)

(2.11%) (2.16%)

5.95% 6.38%
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2021 31

2016 29

2018 10 17
2018
11 15

2021

2021 31 63

GAAP GAAP
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ASC 946

GAAP

2021 31

NAV

2021 31
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ASC 740

more likely than not
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50
NAV
ASC 480
ASC 480
2021 31 13,749
ASC 820
ASC 820
ASC 820

ASC 820
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2021 31

77,983,762 77,983,762

77,983,762 77,983,762
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2020 546,450 412,040
131,380 57,850
(141,470) (197,550)
2021 31 536,360 272,340
100
10,000

100 100 10
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2021 31
2,804,856 948,591

2021 31
568,781

100

12,000

5,000
5,000
1,000

1,000

0.025

0.35
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10,000

0.50

0.10

750

2021 31

1,019
1,657
23,200
18,434
849
39,772
2,142
34,984
122,057
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2019 12 2020
COVID-19 (1)
(i)
2021 31
2021 31
109.97500
10
2021 31
11
2021 24
2021 2021 24
1,383,647
2,895,643
5,084,021
45,743
COVID-19

2021 24
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DecuZign Envelops 10: 340C5F28-DDEA-41 1B-A882-88B447 2805

NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2021
021

Notes UsD
Assets
Investments in Master Fund, fair value (Cost: USD71,258.765) 23 77,983,762
Cash 2 352,705
Foreign currency cash (Cost: USD221,187) 2 213,412
Subscriptions receivable 931,870
Other assets 113,487
Total Asscts 79,595,236
Liabilities
Redempiions pavable 13,749
Payahle for investments purchased 854,649
Interest payable 55
Fees pavahle i 122,057
Other pavables 4.083
Total Liabilities 994,503
Met Assels TS.&M&
Met Asset Value (“NAY™) per unit - Class USD Units
{based on Net Assets of USDS3,852 808 and 336,360 units outstanding) LUSD100.40
NAY perunit - Class JPY Hedged Units
(based on Nel Assels of JPY2,721,643,177 and 272,340 units outstanding) JPYG 904

Signed on behalf of the Trustee

Decatg by, Boseligned b
(s (witin. Ml (Wt L.
R PR T, . mi‘ﬂ-ﬂ."ﬂlﬂ_ﬂ

Date: Seprember 24, 2021

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Operations

For the year ended May 31, 2021

Investment income
Interest income allocated from the Master Fund
Expenses allacated from the Master Fund
MWet investment income allocated from the Master Fund

Fund interest income
Total fund income

Expenses

Interest expense

Administration fees

hanager fees

Investment Manager fees

Audit fees

Trustee fees

Distributor/ Agent Company fees

Legal fees

Custodian fees

(nher fees and expenses
Total fund expenses

Met investment income

Met realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation
Realized loss:

Investments in securities, foreign currency transactions and
forward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund
Investments in securities

Foreign currency fransactions

Met realized loss

Change in unrealized depreciation;

Investments in securities, foreign currency transactions and forward
currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund

Foreign currency transaetions

Met change in unrealized depreciation

Met realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation

Net inerease in Net Assets resulting from operations

The aecompanying notes form an imegral part of these finencial statements.
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2021
usp

6,280,941
(689.536)

5,591,405

......

Ba0
11,966
19,213

268,751
19,558
10,000

460,590
30,523
12,197

101,192

034,859

4,656,618

(1,259,892)
192,568

(200,245%
(1,267,569)

{425.385)

(9,127)
(434,512)

(1,702,081)
2,954,537
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A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended May 31, 2021

Met inerease in Net Assels resulting from operations

Met investment income

Met realized loss on investments in sccuritics, foreign curreney transactions
and forward currency contracis allocated from the Master Fund

et realized gain on investments in securities

Net realized loss on foreign currency transaclions

Met change in unrealized depreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund

Mel change in unrealized depreciation on foreign currency lransactions

Met increase in Net Assets resulting from operations
Distributions to Unitholders:

Class TISD Units
Class JPY Hedged Units

Capital Transactions

Units issued - Class USD Units {131,380 units)

Units issued - Class JPY Hedged Units (57,850 units)

Units redeemed - Class USD Units (141,470 units)

Units redeemed = Class JPY Hedged Units {197,550 units)
Met decrease in Ne Assets resulting from capital ransactions
Total decrease in Net Assets

Met Assets
Beginning of year

End of year

The aceompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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4,656,618
(1,259,892)

192,568
{200.245)

(425.385)
(9.127)

2954537

(2.804,856)
(948,591)

(3.753.447)

13,249,528

5,495 928
(14.514,388)
_(18,553,995)

(14,322,927)

(15,121,837)

93,722,480
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended May 31, 2021

Cash Mows from operating activities
Met increase in Met Assets resulting from operations

Adjustments to recencile net inerease in Net Assets resulling from operalions
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Purchase of investments in the Master Fund

Sale of investments in the Master Fund

Net investment income allocated from the Master Fund

Met realized loss on investments in securitics, foreign currency

transactions and forward cumrency contracts allocated from the Master Fund
Net change in unrezlized depreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund

Change in assets and liabilities related to operations:
Decrease in other assets
Increase in interest payable

Decrease in fees pavable
Increase in other payables

Met cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows provided by financing activities
Proceeds from units issued

Pavments for units redesmed

Drigtributions paid

et cash used In financing activities

Met change in cash and foreign currency cash
Cash and foreign currency cash at beginning of year

Cash and foreign currency cash at end of year

Supplementary information:
Interest received
Interest paid

The aceompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2,954,557

(15.493,633)
38,521,690
(5,591.405)

1,259,892

425,385

57.814

32
(11,122}

4,083

19.127.273
17.813,586

(33.054,634)
(3.753,447)

(18,994,495}

132,778
433,339
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Financial Highlights
For the year ended May 31, 2021
Class JPY
Class USD Hedged
Units Units
Usp JPY
Per Unit operating performance:
MAY per unit, beginning of vear 101,45 10,010
Income from investment operations (B)
Met investment income 6.07 645
Met realized and change in unrealized loss i 1.42) {211}
Total from investment operations 4.65 434
Distributions (5.7m) (450
NAV per unit, end of vear 100,40 9.904
Total Return (A) 4.58% 4.33%
Ratiosfsupplemental data:
Ratio of expenses (o average Met Assets (A)
Series Trust expenses (1.22%) (1.22%)
Allgcated from the Master Fund
Operating expenses {0.89%g) (0.94%)
Total expenses {2.11%:) (2. 16%)
Ratio of net investment income to average Met
Assets (A)  5.95% _6.38%

{(A) Total return is caleulated based on the change in the NAV during the year, Expense ratio
and net investment income ratio are caloulated based on the average Netl Assels outstanding
throughout the vear. The financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and
aperating expenses. Ratios between the two classes may vary due to class specific expenses.
The financial highlights are reflected afer all investment-related and operating expenses,
including income and expenses allocated from the Master Fund.

{B) Results may vary based on the timing of capital ransactions. Per unit information is
caloulated based upon the monthly average unils oulstanding during the vear.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2021

1. Description of the Trust

MK Premium CAT Bond Fund (the “Serics Trust™) is a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund, an
open-ended unit trust established by a master trust deed dated July 29, 2016 (the “Master Trust
Deed™, under the laws of the Cavman [slands. The Series Trust was constituted by a supplemental
trust deed (the “Supplemental Trust Deed”) dated October 17, 2008, under the laws of the Cayman
Ishands, The Series Trust commeneed operations on Movember 15, 2018,

Effective April 1, 2021, the previous investment manager merged into Legg Mazson Asset
Management (Japan) Co., Lid. Following the merger, Legg Mason Asset Management {Japan) Co.,
Lad, changed its name to Franklin Templetan Japan Co., Lad (the “Investmenmt Manager™).
International Management Services Lid. (the “Manager™) serves as the Series Trust's Manager. SMT
Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator™) serves as the Series Trust's Administrator.

The Series Trust's stralegy is consistent with the sirategy of NK CAT Bond Fund (the “Master
Fund™). The Series Trust's investment objective is to scek to achieve risk adjusted absolute returns
by gaining exposure 1o the performance of insurance linked bonds (being CAT Bonds). The Series
‘Trust seeks to achieve this investment objective theough investing in the Master Fund. Accordingly,
the Serics Trust acts as a feeder fund nto the Master Fund such that substantially all of the proceeds
from the sale of the Units will be invested in the Master Fund. The Series Trust owns 63% of the
Master Fund at May 31, 2021.

The Master Fund's linancial statements are attached (o and should be read in conjunction with the
Series Trust"s finencial statements.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, G.AS. (Cavman)
Limited (the “Tmstee™) is named as Trustee of the Senes Trust,

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Folicies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amernca (“11S. GAAP™). The preparation of fnancial
statements in accordance with U5, GAA requires the Series Trust's management t0 make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting vear, Actual results, including the ultimate amount realized upon the
sale of fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be
significant.

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the Investment Company

sccounting and reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Cedification (“ASC™) 946,
Financial Services- Investment Companics.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATECGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2021
(Continued)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Series Trust in
preparing the financial statements:

Valuation of Investments
The following valuation policy is applied in determination of the value of the Series Trust’s
investments:

The Series Trust invests solely in the Master Fund whose objective is 1o seck 1o achicve risk
adjusted absolute returns by investing in CAT Bonds. The Master Fund will seek to achieve its
investment objective by investing mainly in a global portfolio of CAT Boads which will mainly
provide exposure to natural catastrophe events and other life end non-life insurance linked risk
inchuding but not limited to life insurance, motor insurance. operational risk, and marine and
aviation and cyber risk.

CAT Bonds, although often listed or quoted on a securities exchange. are not ordinarily traded
ar exchanged through such secunities exchanges or 8 the price availeble on such securitics
exchanges. Accordingly, CAT Bonds will be valued wsing mdicative secondary market bid
prices provided by reputable brokers or other competent persons selected in good faith by the
Master Fund’s investment manager.

Investments in the Master Fund were valued. as a practical expedient, utilizing the unaudited
net asset valuations provided by administrators, without adjustment, when the net asset
valuations of the investmenis are calculated in a manner consistent with ULS. GAAP. The
attached audited financial statements of the Master Fund, which include the Master Fund's
valuation and significant accounting policies are an integral part of these financial statements
and should be read in conjunction with the Series Trust's financial statements. The
proporlionate share of income, expenses, gains and losses of the Master Fund is disclosed in the
Series Trust's Statement of Gperations for the year ended May 31, 2021,

The Series Trust records its investment in the Master Fund at fair value, based on the NAY per
share as reponted by the Master Fund, Valuation of financial instruments held by the Master
Fund are discussed in Note 2 in the Notes to the May 21, 2021 Financial Statements of the
Master Fund,

Investment Transactions and Investment Income

Imvestment transactions are accounted for on a trade-date basis (date the order to buy or sell s
executed). Gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined using the first in first out
cost method.

Interest income/expense on investments held/sold is accrued as carned/incurred. Interest earned
on the Series Trust’s brokerage account, if any, will be accrued monthly. Discounts and

premiums on Bonds are acereted/amortized to maturity on an effective yvield basis and reported
as part of interest income in the Statement of Operations.

14
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2021
(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as incurred,

Foreign Currency Translation

Items which are included in the Series Trust's financial statements, are measured using the
eurrency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (“the functional currency™),
this iz Uinited States Dollar (“USD™).

The Series Trust does not isolate that portien of the results of operations resulting from changes
in foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in market
prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are included with the net realized and unrealized
gain or loss from investments,

Cash and Foreign Currency

The Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) {(formerly
Sumitomeo Mitsui Trast (UK) Limited) as its sub-custodian. Sumitome Mitsui Trust Bank,
Limited (London Branch), has in tum, appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH") as
its global sub-custoedian. Cash and foreign currency comprise cash with original maturities of 3
months or less and are held at BBH as banker.

[neome Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, withhalding, eapital gains
or other taxes payable by the Series Trust, In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman [slands,
foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and interest received by the Series Trust,
Capital gains derived by the Seres Trust in such jurisdictions generally will be exempt from
foreign income or withholding taxes at source, The Series Trust intends 1o conduet its afTairs
such that it will not be subject to income tax in any jurisdiction, As a result, no provision for
income taxes has been made in the financial statements. Unitholders may be taxed on their
proportionate share of the Series Trust's tax basis income based on their individual
gircumslances.

The Series Trust follows the authortative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainly in tax posilions (Financiz] Accounting Standards Board ASC 740}, which requires
management to determine whether a tax position of the Series Trust s more likely than not o
be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resolution of any
refated appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position,

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized on the
financial statements is reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifiy percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate seitlement with the relevant taxing autherity, The
Manager has determined that there is no ¢ffect on the fimancial statements being under this
authoritative guidance.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2021
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Acconnting Folicies (eontinued)

Guarantees andfor Indemnifications

In the normal course of business the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enters into contracts
that contain a wvariety of representations, which provide general indemnifications. The
Manager's maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown (although capped at the
MNAV of the Series Trust), as this would involve future claims that may be made against the
Manager that have not yet occurred, However, based on experience, the Manager expects the
risk of loss 1o be remole.

ASC 480

ASC 480, “Acecounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilities and Equity”, recognizes redemptions as liabilities, when the amount and number of
units requested in the redemplion nolice becomes fixed. This generally may occur at the time
of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal pericd, depending on the natre of the
request, Redemptions payvable may be trested as capital for purposes of allocations of
gains{losses) pursuant to the Series Trust's poverning documents. As at May 31, 2021, there
were redemptions payable of USDN 3,749,

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

ASC E20, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”. provides additional guidance for
estimating fair value in accordance with ASC 820 when the volume and level of activity for the
asset or Mability have significantly decreased and provides guidance on identifving
circumstances that indicate a transaction is not orderly.

ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation lechnigques
used to measure fair value. The bierarchy gives the highcst priority to unadjusted listed prices

priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hicrarchy under ASC 820 are as follows:

= Level | = Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilitics that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 = Inputs other than quoted prices that are chservable for the asset or lizbility either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

= Level 3 — Inputs that are uncbservable,

Inputs arc used in applying the various wvaluation techniques and broadly refer to the
assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions
about risk. A financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Investment Manager
considers abservable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprictary and provided by independent sources that are
actively invalved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instrument within the
hietarchy is hased upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily
correspond to the Investment Manager®s perceived risk of that instrument.

16
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2021
(Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (continued)

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified
within Level 1.

Cash and foreign currency are classified as Level | with all receivables and payables classified
as Level 2.

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered Lo be active, but are valued based on
quoted markel prices, dealer quotations or altemative pricing sources supporied by ohservable
inputs are classified within Level 2. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded
in active markets and/or are subject to transier resirictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and‘or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market
information,

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently or not at all.

The following table presents the investment in the Series Trust carried on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2021:

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Assets Ush UsD Usiy USD
Investment in Master Fund - 77.983,762 . 77.983 762
Total - 77983, 762 - 77,983,762

There wene no transfers between the levels during the year,

4. Unit Capital

Class JPY

Class USD Hedged

Units Units

Number of units outstanding at June 1, 2020 546,450 412,040
Units issued during the year 131,380 57,850
Units redeemed during the vear (1414700 (197,550
Number of units outstanding at May 31, 2021 536,360 271,540

One unitholder holds all of the Units auributable to Class USD Units and Class JPY Hedged
Lnits.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2021
(Continued)

4. Unit Capital (continued)

Class USD Units were first issued at an initial issue price of USDHO00 per Unit Class JIPY
Hedged Units were first issued at an initial issue price of JPY 10,000 per Unit. The minimum
subscription amount per subseriber in respect ofeach clags ol unit is 100 units, and subscriptions
for more than 100 Units may only be made in ten Unit increments.

Subscription proceeds resulting from the issue of USD Units will be invested in the Class A
USD elass of Master Fund Shares. Subscription proceeds resulting from the issue of JPY
Hedged Units will be invested in the Class A JPY (Hedged) class of Master Fund Shares,

For subsequent subscriptions by existing unitholders, the purchase price per unit will be the
MAY per Unit of the relevant elass of unils on the valuation day [alling on the relevant
subscription day.

The subseription day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third valuation day of cach
calendar month andfor such other day or days that the Manager may from time o time
determine in respect of the Series Trust,

Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders as at each repurchase day.
The repurchase day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third Valuation of each calendar
month and/or such other day or days thal the Manager may from time to Hme determine in
respect of the Series Trust,

The MAY per Unit is caleulated by dividing the difference in value between the Series Trust's

of Units outstanding. [n the normal course of events, gaing and losses associated with currency
class hedging will be for the benetit or detriment of holders of the applicable non-USD Master
Fund Shares only.

The Manager may declare and arcange for the payment of distribations in respect ol any class
of units of such amount (if any) as shall be determined by the Manager, afler consultation with
the [nvestment Manager, and approved by the Trustee.

The ex-distribution date will be the valuation day which immediately follows the relevant
Distribution. Record Date which is the second Friday of November in each wear, providing that
if such day is not a business day then the immediately following business day and/or such other
date or dates as the Manager mav determine in respeer of any class of Units. For the year ended
May 31, 2021, the Series Trust distributed LSD2 804,836 in respect of Class USD Units and
USD9E, 591 in respect of Class IPY Hedged [Units,

18
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2021
{Continued)

5. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one panty has the ability 1o control the other panty or
exercise sipnificant influence over the ather party in making financial or operational decisions.
There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business. The Manager, Trustee and related companies (a company that controls or is controlled
by the Manager or the Trustee, often one that is in the same business group) are deemed 1o be
related to the Series Trust. Fees incurred with related parties during the vear are disclosed in
the Statement of Operations. Amounts pavable to related parties at the vear end are disclosed
in the Statement of Asscts and Liabilities.

The Investment Manager fee allocated from the Master Fund to the Series Trust as at May 31,
2021 is USD568,781.

SMBC Mikko Securities Inc., holds 100% of all units in issue in the Class USD and Class JPY
Hedged, As a result, any actions of SMBC Nikke Secunties Inc., can matenally impact the
Serics Trust.

6. Fees and Expenses

Administration Fees
The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USD 2,000 per annum
of the MAV, accrued as of each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

The Administrator is also entitled to; (a) an establishment fee of USDE,000; (b) an annual fee
of USDE,000 in connection with provision of assistance in connection to the preparation of the
financial statements of the Series Trust; (¢) an annual fee of USD 000 in connection with filing
the audited accounts of the Series Trest with the Cayman Tslands Monetary Authority; and (d)
an annual fee of USD1,000 in connection with facilitating the Manager or its delegate in the
preparation of certain eeports and/for statements reguired for Japanese regulatory purposes.

Manager Fees
Ihe Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trast, a fee of 0.025% per annum of the
MAV, acerved and caleulated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears.

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives oul of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.35% per annum
of the MAV, accrued and caleulated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2021
{Comtinued)

6. Fees and Expenses (eontinoed)

Trustee Fees
The Trustee receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USD10,000 per annum

accrued as at each valuation day and payable menthly in arrears.

Distributor/Agent Company Fees
The Distributor receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.50% per annum of the
MNAV, accrued end calculated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears.

The Agent Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.10% per annum
of the NAV, acerued and caleulated on cach valuation day and paid monthly in arrears,

Custodian Fees

The Custedian is entitled to receive, out of the assels of the Series Trust, management and
transaction fees. The Custodian’s safe keeping fees are USD750 per month, acerued on each
valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The transaction fees will be at customary rates
as agreed between the Trustee and the Custodian,

The fees payable as at May 31, 2021 are as follows:

usn
Administration fees La19
Manager fees 1.657
Investment Manager fecs 23,200
Audit fees 18,434
Trustee fees B49
Distributor/Agent Company fees 19,772
Custodian fees 2,142
Other fees and expenses _ 34981
122,057

7. Financial Risk Management

The Series Trust's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk), credil risk and liguidity risk.

Market Risk
The Series Trust invests solely in the Master Fund. All investments present a risk of loss of
capital. The Investrnent Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of invesiments.

The value of the Series Trust’s investments are affected by a number of factors, including but

not limited to. changes in the wider economy, financial and currency markets and foreign
currency exchange rotes.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2021
(Continued})

7. Financial Risk Management (continucd)

Market Risk (continued)

In a falling market environment. the value of the investments held by the Series Trust may
decling, and as a result, the NAV may decline below its initigl principal amount, Also, adverse
developments in an issuer’s economic conditions or such negative events as bankruptcy may
cause the value of the equities 1o decline substantially and may significantly impact the NAY,

Currency Risk

The Series Trust may hold monetary and pon-monetary assets and incur monetary and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in currencies other than USD, It may therefore be exposed 1o
currency risk, as the value of the assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies will
fuctuate due to changes in exchange rates.

If investing in the sccurities of companies that are denominated in non-USD currencies, the
Series Trust may be exposed 1o risks that the exchange rate of USD relative to other currencies
may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the reported value of those securities.

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust would incur if the counterparties
failed 1w perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust.

Although the Trusiee monitors the Custodian and believes it to be an appropriate custodian,
there is no guarantee that this or any custodian that the Series Trust may use from time 1o time,
will not become insolvent, the result of which could lead 1o losses for the Series Trust.

While there arc codes and acts lo prodect customer property in the event of a fuilure, insolveney
ar liguidation of an institution, there is no cortainty thal, in the event of a failure of an institution
that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Series Trust would not incur losses due to its assets
being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both.
Because all of the Series Trust's cash is in custody with a single institution, such losses could
be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Series Trust te achieve its
investment objective. The Series Trust is subject to credit risk to the extent that this institation
may be unable to fulfill its obligations to repay amounts owed.

Liquidity Risk

Investors should be aweare that the value of units might fall as well as rise. lnvestment in the
Series Trust involves a degree of risk: there can be no assurance that the Series Trust's
imvestment objective will be achieved.

The Serics Trust is exposcd to reparchase ol s units but management believes that the Series
Trust has sufficient resources to meet the present and foresecable needs of its business
operations and, if necessary, the liguidity to fund repurchases and achieve a market position
appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position s monilored continually by
management to ensure that the Serics Trust has the ability to meet its obligations.

167/252



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2021
(Continued)

7. Financial Risk Management (continved)

Ligquidity Risk (continued)

The Series Trust may temporarily suspend the caleulation of the NAV and therefore, the right
of redemptions and subscriptions of offered Units in exeeptional circumstances. No issue or
redemption of Units will lake place during any period when the caleulation of the NAV is
suspended.

The risk of being unable to redeem from the Master Fund is a Series Trust specilic risk. The
potential inability to redeem oul of the Master Fund is a risk for the Series Trost's investors,
especially given the NAY of the Series Trust is derived from the ownership of the Master Fund.

COVID-19

As of the date of these linancial statements, the global COVID-19 pandemic first identified in
December 2019 and declared by the World Health Organization a pandemic in March 2020, is
ongoing. The pandemic (i) has resulted and may continue to result in travel and border
restrictions, quarantines. supply chain disruptions, lower consumer demand and general marker
unceriainty: and (i} has and may continue to adversely affect the global economy and the
economies of cerlzin nations.

4. Commitments and Contingencies
As at May 31, 2021, the Series Trust had no commitments or contingencies,
9. Exchange rates used in this Report

The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liahilities into one USD as at
May 31, 2021:

Japaneze Yen 10997500
10, Recent Pronpuncements
There was no recent pronouncements during the vear ended May 31, 2021,
11. Subsequent Events

Management performed a subsequent events review up lo Seplember 24, 2021, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Effective June 1, 2021 through to September 24, 2021 investors subscribed L'SD],383,647 in
respect of Class USD Units and USD2,895,643 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units into the
Series Trust and investors redeemed USDS5084,021 in respect of Class USD Units and
USD45,743 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units from the Series Trust.

Az at the date the financial statements were available to be issued. uncertainty still remains
around the length of the disruption of COVIDR-19 and the impact on global markets.

2
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2021

{Continued)
11. Subsequent Events (continued)

Management concluded that there were no other subsequent events whieh required additional
disclosure in these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved on September 24, 2021,

23
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2022
36,481,973.47 5,282,955
122,744.98 17,775
36,359,228.49 5,265,180
301,460
) 169,820
88.11 12,759
) 8,350
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

2021 2020

2,530,732 366,475 2,058,710 298,122

4 585,703 84,816 600,748 86,994
293,705 42,531 186,744 27,042
9 150,428 21,783 272,903 39,519

3,560,568 515,606 3,119,105 451,678

5 255,475 36,995 268,248 38,845

255,475 36,995 268,248 38,845

3,816,043 552,601 3,387,353 490,523

18,662 2,702 52,054 7,538
931,237 134,852 747,805 108,290
831,521 120,413 690,915 100,051

1,384,623 200,507 1,246,579 180,517
3,166,043 458,475 2,737,353 396,396

6 50,000 7,241 50,000 7,241
600,000 86,886 600,000 86,886

650,000 94,127 650,000 94,127

3,816,043 552,601 3,387,353 490,523

2022 30
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020
( )
( ) «C ) ( ) C )
8,414,155 1,218,454 8,971,680 1,299,189
) 4 3,688 534 (66,854) (9,681)
8,417,843 1,218,988 8,004,826 1,289,508
973,002 140,900 539,448 78,117
56,951 8,247 52,721 7,635
7.8.,9 (6,638,466)  (961,316)  (6,747,334)  (977,081)
2,809,330 406,819 2,749,661 398,178
2,809,330 406,819 2,749,661 398,178
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

(CED B GNP R G R G R CED R G )

2019 12 31 50,000 7,241 600,000 86,886 650,000 94,127

- - 2,749,661 398,178 2,749,661 398,178

- - (2,749,661) (398,178)  (2,749,661)  (398,178)

2020 12 31 50,000 7,241 600,000 86,886 650,000 94,127

- - 2,809,330 406,819 2,809,330 406,819

- - (2,809,330) (406,819) (2,809,330)  (406,819)

2021 12 31 50,000 7,241 600,000 86,886 650,000 94,127
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

2021 2020

2,809,330 406,819 2,749,661 398,178

22,042 3,192 27,519 3,985

15,045 2,179 313,905 45,457
(106,961)  (15,489) (49,012) (7,097)
122,475 17,736 (179,809)  (26,038)
(29,203) (4,229) (85,170)  (12,333)
183,432 26,563 38,365 5,556
140,606 20,361 200,697 29,063

3,156,766 457,131 3,016,156 436,770

(9,269) (1,342) (3,264) (473)

(9,269) (1,342) (3,264) (473)

(2,675,475)  (387,436)  (2,316,333)  (335,428)

(2,675,475)  (387,436) (2,316,333)  (335,428)

472,022 68,354 696,559 100,869

2,058,710 298,122 1,362,151 197,253

2,530,732 366,475 2,058,710 298,122
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SH 2001 20
A.S. - 1978 27
N.D. - 1978 27
N.S. - 1978 27
- 1979 10 26
NS - 2012 27
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30
2021 2020
0 30 286,150 90,065
31 60 11,139 27,898
61 90 17,331 25,623
91 271,083 457,162
585,703 600,748
2021 2020
923,737 974,965
(338,034) (374,217)
585,703 600,748
2021 2020
374,217 316,991
(3,688) 66,854
- 88,121
(32,495) (97,769)
338,034 374,217
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2021

341,637 396,854 239,816 156,891 1,135,198
- 9,269 - - 9,269
341,637 406,123 239,816 156,891 1,144,467
189,578 385,870 188,884 102,618 866,950
3,894 6,746 5,536 5,866 22,042
193,472 392,616 194,420 108,484 888,992

2021 12 31
148,165 13,507 45,396 48,407 255,475

2020

341,637 393,590 239,816 156,891 1,131,934
- 3,264 - - 3,264
341,637 396,854 239,816 156,891 1,135,198
185,889 373,774 181,491 98,219 839,373
3,689 12,096 7,393 4,399 27,577
189,578 385,870 188,884 102,618 866,950

2020 12 31
152,059 10,984 50,932 54,273 268,248

2021 2020

80,000 ( ) 96,000 96,000
41,667 (2020 41,667 ) 50,000 50,000
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)
2022
18,410
18,776 19,151
2021 2020
( )
220,920 128,870
455,124 -
676,044 128,870
2021 12 31
61,994 (2020 83,391 )
2021 12 31
2021 2020
563,349 475,349
IMS 141,859 125,414
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2021 2020
150,428 272,903
2021 12 31 3,929,626 (2020
4,233,086 ) 63,945 (2020 63,289 )
10.
2021 12 31
(2020 )
11. COVID-19
2020 11 COVID-19
COVID-19
12.
IFRS ( ) 16
( IFRS 16 ) ( )
IFRS 16
( )

IFRS
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2020

756,361
(756,361)

760,550
4,189

(760,550)
4,189

2020 2020

2,749,661 2,749,661

237,971 27,519

(210,452) -

187/252

2022 30



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consohdated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2021 and 2020
{xtated in United States doflars)

Note 2021 2020
{resiated)
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,530,732 2,058,710
Accounts receivable 4 585,703 600,748
Other receivables and prepaid expenses 293,705 186,744
Due from affiliated companies 9 150,428 272,903
3,560,568 3.119.105
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 3 255475 268,248
255475 268,248
Total assets USS 3,816,043 3.387.353
Liabilities and shareholder’s equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accmed expenses 18.662 52.054
Uneamed income and payable to clients 931.237 T47.805
Staff bonuses payable 831.521 60,915
Dividends payable 1.384.623 1.246.579
3.166.043 2,737,353
Shareholder’s equity
Share capital 6 500,000 0,000
Retained eamings 0, DD GO0, 00
530,000 650,000
Total liabilities and shareholder’s equily USS 3816043 3.387.353

See accompanying notes re consolidated financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board on March 30, 2022

aul Harns
Director
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Conschdated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
{xtated in United Stares dollars)

Note 2021 2020
{restared)
Income
Revenue 414,155 B.971.680
Bad debis recovered (wniten off) 4 3,688 [66,854)
£.417.843 8.904 826
Expenses
Other income 973,002 539 448
Rental income 56,951 52. 7121
Administration ¢xpenses 7.8.9 (6,638,466) (6,747.334)
2809330 2,749,661
Net income Uss 28095330 2,749,661

See accompanying netes to consolidated financial statements,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES L

Consohdated Statements of Changes mn Sharcholder’s Equity

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
{xtated in United Stares dollars)
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Share Retained

capital earmngs Taotal
Balance at December 31, 2019 50,000 GO0, O 650,000
Nel ncome 2.749.661 2.749.661
Dividends declared - (2,749.661) (2,749.661)
Balance at December 31, 2020 50,000 GO0, D00 50, OCHD
Mel ncome - 2809330 2809330
Dividends declared - (28093300 (2.809.330)
Balance at December 31, 2021 5% 50,000 00, (O G50, 000

See accompanying notes fo consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consohdated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
{xtated in United Stares dollars)
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2021 2020
{restated)
Operating activities
Net income 2.809.330 2.749.661
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation 21042 27,519
Adjustorents to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operations:
Accounts receivable 15,045 313,905
Other receivables and prepaid expenses (106,961) (49.012)
Duee from affibated companies 122,475 (179.809)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (29.203) (85.170)
Uneamed income and payable to clients 183432 38,365
Stafl bonuses payable 140,606 200,697
Net cash provided by operating activities 3.156,766 3016516
Investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (9,269 (3.264)
Loss on disposal of assets - -
Net cash used in investing activities (9.269) (3,264)
Financing activities
Dividends paid (2.675475) (2.316,333)

Met cash used in financing activitics

(2.675.475)

(2.316.333)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents during vear
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of vear Uss

472,022

2058710

696,555

1.362,151

2.058.710

See accomparying notes lo consolidated financlal statements,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020
{xtated in United States dollars)

1. Incorporation and background information

International Management Services Lid. (the “Company™) was mcorporated mmder the Companies
Law (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on August 30. 1974 and provides company and
insurance management and corporate secretarial services. On December 12, 1985, the Company
was licensed under Section 4 (5) of the Companics Management Act (2021 Revision) to carry on
the business of company management in or within the Cayman Islands. On May 13, 1988, the
Company was licensed under Section 4 (2) of The Insurance Act 2010 (2021 Revision). to carmy on
the business of insurance management in or within the Cayman Islands. On July 27, 1994, the
Company was licensed nnder Section 12 of The Mumal Funds Act (2021 Revision) to cary on the
business of mumal fund administration. On June 7, 2004 the Company was licensed under the Banks
and Trst Companies Act (2021 Revision), to carry on trust business from within the Cavman
Islands. On December 28, 2006, the Company surrendered its Companies Management Licence.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of The IMS Group Lid., a company also imcarporated
m the Cayvinan Islands.

The financial results of the Company and its wholly owned subsidianmes (the “Group™) are
consolidated a1 vear end 1o Form the Group.

The registered office of the Company is 3™ Floor Harbour Centre, George Town, P-O. Box 61, Grand
Cayman KY 1-1102, Cayman Islands.

The Group had 24 employees as at December 31, 2021 (2020: 25).

1. Basis of presentation
fal Statement of complianee

This is the first set of financial statements prepared by the Group in accordance with the
‘Imtemational Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medinm-sized Entities (“IFRS for
SMEs")" 1ssued by the Interpational Accounting Standards Board (“TASB™). The principal
accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented. unless
otherwise stated,

Management has made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
15 satisfied thar the Group has the resources to continie 1 business for the foresecable future,
Furthenmore, management 15 not aware of any matenal uncertamties that may cast a significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated
financial statements continue 10 be prepared on the going concem basis,

fh} Basiz of measurement

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continned)

December 31, 2021 and 2020
{atated in United States dollars)

1. Basis of presentation (continued)
fol Functional and presentation currency

The Group’s functional and presentation currency 15 the United States dollar ("LIS5") and not
the local currency of the Cayman Islands reflecting the fact that the Group's operations are
primanky conducted m United States dollars.

fdl Use of estimates and fudgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS for SMEs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilies and disclosure of
confingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of income and expenses during the vear. Actual results could differ from
those estmates,

fe) Corresponding figeres
Certamn prior year amounts have been reclassified to confonm to the current vear presentation.
{ff Capital management

The Group's regulator, the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority (the ~Authonin™), sets and
monitors capital requirements for the Group under the Monetary Aunthority Law (2021
Revision), the Compamies Management Law (2020 Revision), the Insurance Law, 2010, the
Mumal Funds Law (2021 Revision) and the Bank and Trust Companies Law (2021 Revision).
The Group is required to have a minimum net worth of CI1%400,000 (US$300,000) and has a 3
month filing deadline after year end date. The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base
to sustain funre development of the business. The Group has complied with all imposed capital
requirements throughout the year. and there were no material changes to the Group's
management of capital during the vear.

fe) New Srandards Eﬁeﬂ'ﬁ?j‘ﬂr ﬂnfiuﬂf!wriotf I!e'g:'um'ng 1 Janary 2021

There are no new standards or amendments effective for annual periods beginming 1January
2021 that will have a sigmificant unpact to the Group.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {contimued)

December 31, 2021 and 2020
{xtated in United States dollars)

3. Sigaificant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently 1o all periods presented i
these consolidated financial statements. There have been no changes to accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are as follows:

fal Consolidated whm’{r owned subsidiaries

Company Business Date of incorporationaddition
SH Corporate Services Lid Registered Office Services Apral 20, 2001
A.S. Nominees Ltd.* Nominee Company Tanuary 27, 1978
N.D. Nominee Lud * Nominee Company January 27, 1978
M.5. Nominee Lud.* Mominee Company January 27, 1978
Cardinal Nominee Linited®  Nominee Company October 26, 1979
IMS Trustees Lud.* Trustee Services April 27, 2012
IMS Liguidations Lid. Ligquidation Services January 25, 2013

*  These wholly owued subsidianes of e Cowupany lave Leen estibbished w act only w oo
nominee capacity and have not traded in their own right during the yvear ended December 31,
2021 and 2020,

All income earned and expenses mowmed by these compames are accounted for by the Company
and all inter-company transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation, The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidared financial statements from the date
that conmol commences to the date that control ceases. The Group sccounts for business
combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. The
consideration is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acoquired.

ih

—

Financial assers emd Habilives

Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (this includes transaction
cost except m the mital measurement of financial assets and habalines that will be measured at
fair value throngh profit or loss). If, however the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction
it 15 then measured at the present value of the future payments, discounted at a marker related
mierest rate.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {contimued)

December 31, 2021 and 2020
{xtated in United Staves dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies {continued)

fe)  Accomwnts receivables

Accounts receivables represent amounts due from clients and related parties for services
performed in the normal course of business. Most sales are made on the basis of normal credit
terms, and the receivables do mot bear imterest. Where credin is extended beyond normal credir
terms, receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Other
receivables are considered past due after 90 to 180 days, At the end of cach reporting period,
the camymg amounts of accounts receivable are reviewed 1o determine whether there is any
objective evidence that the amounts are not recoverable. If so. an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,

fel} Revemue Recogmition

The Group recognises revenie in the amount expected to be received for services supplied at a
point in time or over time as contracmal performance obligations are fulfilled and control of
services passes 1o the customer,

Where the comraciual performance obligatnons are satnsfied over time and revenue 15 recognised
over time.

Where performance obligations are safisficd at a point in e, revenne is recognised when the
risks and rewards of ownershap have transferred to the customer. Thas 15 at the point where the
service is delivered to the customer and there are no unfulfilled obligations that could affect the

customer s acceplance of the service,
Nature of services

The following 15 a description of the pnncipal activines from which the Group generates its
revenue.

i} Prafessional services

Fees generated from a range of professional services including directorship services,
captive insurance management services. tistee services and amti-money laundering
SETVICES.

{#i) Management fee from related party

Fees generated from the provision of administration services to a related parry.
{#ii} Registered office services

Fees generated from the provision of registered office services.

1o
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

MNaotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

December 31, 2021
{stated in United Stares dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
fel} Revenue Recognition (cominied)
FPerformance obligations and revenue recognition policies

The Group recognizes revenue from the provision of fiduciary and registered office services to
client companies. The specific services required involve the provision of a director to act in his
fiduciary capacity for client companies as well as the provision of a client company registered
office for a set annual fee. In addition. as part of the contractual terms, client companies also
require corporate services throughout the financial vear on the basis of fees specified in the
conlract.

fe) Forefgn currency

Assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign cumrencies are translated at rates of
exchange prevailing at the consolidated statements of financial position date. Transactions in
foreign currencies are wranslated at the rates of exchange ruling on the dare of the transaction.
Amy resulting exchange gains or losses are credited or debited 1o the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income,

{f} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of cument bank accounts held with financial institutions
with onginal terms to matumity of three months or less,

fg) Property, plat and equipient

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment loss.

Depreciation 15 recognised i the consolidated statements of compreliensive income after taking
into account residual values over the following expected nseful lives of the assets using the

respective methods:
Office building 2.5% pa.  Reducing Balance
Computer equupment 200 pa. Straight Line Method
Fumniture and cquipment 1% pa.  Reducing Balance
Leasehold improvements 1% pa.  Reducing Balance

The camrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Impainment losses are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they are sdentified.

th) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease mansfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset 1o the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

11
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements {contimued)

December 31, 2021
{xtared in United Staves dollars)

3. Significant accounting policies {continued)
fi} Income recognition and fees billed in advance

Management fees are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the period for which services are provided,

Uneamed income and payable to clients comprise funds received from clients as prepayviments
for services 1o be performed in future years.

i Expenses
Expenses are recogmsed i the consolidated statements of comprehensive income on the accmal
baisas.

ikl Enyrlavee benefits
it} Defined conmvibuiion pension plan

The Group participates i a defined contribution plan, A defined contmbution plan 15 a
post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed conmributions into a
separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation if the plan does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to emploves service i the current
and prior periods. Obligations for contributions to defined conmbution pension plans are
recopnised as an expense in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as
incred.

{it)  Short-term benefits

Shor-term employvee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
expensed as the related service 15 provided, A hiability is recogmised for the amount
expected to be paid under shom-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the emplovee and the obligation can be estimated reliably,

{1} Assers under administration

In the nonmal course of business, the Group provides fiduciary services by acting as tstee of
Trusts. The assets and liabilities of the Trusts under the Group's management are not incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements,

4. Accounis Receivable

The nature of the Group’s exposure to credit risk and its objectives, policies, and processes for
managing credit risk have not changed significantly from the prior year. The Group’s maxinum
exposure to credit nisk 15 the camving value of its financial assets. The Group establishes an
allowanee for bad and doubtful accounts that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of
accounts receivable,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

December 31, 2021
{xtared in United States dollars)

4. Accounts Receivable (continued)

The Group manages credit risk in respect of accounts receivables by performing periodic reviews
of outstanding customer balances. Management does not expect any significant counterparties to
fail to meet their obligations. Management believes that unimpaired amounts that are past due more
than 30 days are still collectible in full.

The Group's aging of accounts receivables at the reporting date was!

2021 2020

0 to 30 days 286,150 065

31 1o 60 days 11,1309 27,898

61 to 90 davs 17.331 25,623

More than 91 days 271.083 457,162

Uss 585,703 600,748

The Group's accounts receivables at the reporting date were:

2021 2020

Gross accounts receivable 923,737 974965
Provision for doubtful accounts (338,034) 374217

USs 585,703 G600, 748

Movements in the provision for doubtful accounts during the year are as follows:

2021 2020

Balance at beginning of vear 374,217 316,991

Charge to statement of comprehensive income (3.688) 66,854

Recovenies of doubtful debis - 88.121
Bad debis (recovered) / wntten off {32.495) (97.769)

USS 338,054 374,217
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continned)

December 31, 2021
{xtared in United States dollars)

5. Property, plant and equipment

Office Computer  Furniture & Leasehold
2021 building  equipment  equipment  improvements Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning 341,637 396,854 139816 156,891 1.135,198
of year
Additions - 9.269 - - 9.269
Balance at end of year 341.637 406,123 239816 156,821 1.144.467
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning 189,578 385,870 188.884 102,618 866,950
of year
Charge for vear 1894 6,746 5536 5,866 22,042
Balance at end of vear 193.472 392616 194.420 108,484 838,992
Net book value at
December 31, 2021 U153 148,165 13,507 45,396 48,407 255475
Office  Computer  Furnifure & Leasehold
2020 building  equipment  equipmen!  improvements Toal
Cost:
Balance at beginning 341,637 393,590 239816 156,891  1.131.934
of year
Additions - 3.264 - - 3.264
Balance at end of year 341,637 396,854 239816 156,891 1.135,198
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning 185,889 373,774 181.491 98,219 839,373
of year
Charge for vear 3.689 12,096 7.393 4,399 21577
Balance at end of year 189,578 385870 188,884 102.618 266,950
Net book value at
December 31, 2020 USS 152,059 10,984 50,932 54273 268,248
14
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continted)

December 31, 2021
{stated in United Stares dollars)

6. Share capital

2021 2020
Authorised:
&0.000 shares of CI51 each Uss 96,000 6,000
Issued and fully paid:
41,667 shares (2020 : 41.667) Uss S0, 000 50,000
T. Leases

The Group has a lease for its operating premises, a floor of an office building. The Group classifies
this lease as an operating lease, the lease is for a penod of 3 years commencing 1 January 2022, The
rent payable under the lease is $18.410 per month for the period of the lease for the first vear,
$18,776 per month for the second vear and § 19,151 per month for the third year of the lease.

The lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual nght for the Group to
sublet the asset to another party, the premises can only be used by the Group. Leases may only be
cancelled by mncurring a substantive fermination fee.

The table below describes the natare of the Group™s leasing activities recognised on the balance
sheet:

Futnre mvinimman lease payments

The total of future minimum lease payments under the lease may be analysed as follows:

2021 2020

(restated)

Less than one vear 220,920 128,870
Greater than one vear but less than five years 455,124 .
Uss 676,044 128,870

15
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8. Defined contribution pension plan

The Group participates in the Fidelity Pension Plan, a defined contribution pension scheme. The
Group 15 required to match each employee's contnbution on a one to one basis up 1o 5% of the
employee’s annual salary. During the year ended December 31. 2021, the Group contributed

U5561.994 (2020: US383.391).

9. Related party transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group eamed the following administration and

management fees from its affiliated companies:

2021 2020
Corporate Filing Services Lid. US3 563.349 475,349
IMS Securities Lid. 141,859 125414
Amounts due from related affiliates are as follows:

2021 2020
Corporate Filing Services Lid, Us% 150,428 272,903

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group paid US$3,929.626 (2020: USS4,233 086) in
short-term employment benefits and US$63.945 (2020: US$63.289) in long-term employment

benefits to key management personnel.

10. Contingencies

The Group, in its fiduciary capacity. may be a party to litigation and claims in the nonnal course of
business. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice of the Group’s legal counsel,
o combingency provisions are required af 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil),

11. Considerations of the impact of COVID-19

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization officially declared COVID-19, the disease
cansed by the novel coronaviris, a pandemic. The pandemic has developed rapidly during the
financial vear and measures taken by governments internationally has sigmificantly affected
economic activity, wiech has had implications for financial reporting. Management has considered
the impact of COVID-1% in relation to expected fumire performance and future asset valuations and
has concluded that such impact would not be significant to the operations of the Group

16
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INTEENATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTI.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continned)

December 31, 2021
{atared in United Stares dollars)

12, Impact of change in acconnting policy

Following the adoption of IFRS for SMEs (see Note 2), the Group was required to restate certain
balances with respect to the lease amangements (see Note 8) that had previously been reported in
accordance with Imemational Financial Reporting Standard 16; Leases (“IFRS 167). Previously the
lease was recognised as a Finance Lease under IFRS 16, a Right of Use Asset and corresponding
lease liallity was disclosed on the consolidated statements of financial position

The right-of-use asset was measured at cost. made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability.
any imitial direct costs incurred by the Group and any lease pavinents made in advance of the lease
commencement date (net of any incentives received),

The Group depreciated the right-of-use asset on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement
dlate 1o the end of the lease term.

IFRS for SME’s allows for the lease to be disclosed as an operating lease. therefore the following
adjustments have been made to the prior year comparatives:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
2020
Total assets, initially veported Uss 756,361
Adjustment to Right of Use Asset (756,361)
Total Assets, restated
Total liabilities and equity, initially reported Uss 760,550
Adjustment to Accounts payvable and accrued expenses 4.189
Adjustment 1o lease habiliry (760.550)
Total liabilities and equity, restated 4.139

17
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continned)

December 31, 2021
{stared in Linited States dollars)

12, Impact of change in acconnting policy (continued)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

Original Restated
2020 2020
Operating activities
Net mcome for year 2.749.661 2. 749,661
Add/(deduct):
Items not affecting the movement of cash:

Depreciation 237.971 27.519

Financing activities
Repayment of lease habilies (210.452) -

13. Subsequent events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements. management has evaluated and disclosed all
matenial subsequent events up to March 30, 2022 which 15 the date that the consolidared financial
statements were available 1o be issued.

18
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Independent auditor’ s report

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund (a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund) (the Series Trust) as
at May 31, 2021, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the
financial highlights for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

What we have audited
The Series Trust’ s financial statements comprise

the statement of assets and liabilities as at May 31, 2021;

the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2021;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report
(but does not include the Series Trust’ s financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Series Trust' s financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines 1is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series
Trust’ s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
this evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Series Trust.

Auditor’ s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust’ s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely
in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trust in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands
September 24, 2021
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Independent auditor’ s report

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund (a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund) (the Series Trust) as
at May 31, 2022, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the
financial highlights for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

What we have audited
The Series Trust’ s financial statements comprise

the statement of assets and liabilities as at May 31, 2022;

the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2022;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report
(but does not include the Series Trust’ s financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Series Trust’ s financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines 1is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series
Trust’ s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
this evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Series Trust.

Auditor’ s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust’ s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely
in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trust in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

September 27, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR *S REPORT
To the Directors of International Management Services Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International Management Services Ltd. (the “Company”),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in shareholder®s equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium- Sized Entities
(“IFRS for SMES™).

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for the Company*s directors as a body for regulatory filing
purposes only. We do not, ingiving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come, save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants® International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibil ities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRS for SMEs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company”s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company®s financial reporting process.

Auditor"s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor”s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressingan opinionon the effectiveness of the
Company*s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company*s ability to continue as a going concern. 1T we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor"s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Grant Thornton
George Town
Grand Cayman
March 30, 2022

252/252



	表紙
	本文
	第一部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１ファンドの性格
	（１）ファンドの目的及び基本的性格
	（２）ファンドの沿革
	（３）ファンドの仕組み
	（４）ファンドに係る法制度の概要
	（５）開示制度の概要
	（６）監督官庁の概要

	２投資方針
	（１）投資方針
	（２）投資対象
	（３）運用体制
	（４）分配方針
	（５）投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	（１）申込手数料
	（２）買戻し手数料
	（３）管理報酬等
	（４）その他の手数料等
	（５）課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	（１）投資状況
	（２）投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他投資資産の主要なもの

	（３）運用実績
	①純資産の推移
	②分配の推移
	③収益率の推移

	（４）販売及び買戻しの実績


	第２管理及び運営
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等
	３資産管理等の概要
	（１）資産の評価
	（２）保管
	（３）信託期間
	（４）計算期間
	（５）その他

	４受益者の権利等
	（１）受益者の権利等
	（２）為替管理上の取扱い
	（３）本邦における代理人
	（４）裁判管轄等


	第３ファンドの経理状況
	１財務諸表
	（１）2022年５月31日終了年度
	①貸借対照表
	②損益計算書
	③投資有価証券明細表等

	（２）2021年５月31日終了年度
	①貸借対照表
	②損益計算書


	２ファンドの現況
	純資産額計算書


	第４外国投資信託受益証券事務の概要

	第二部特別情報
	第１管理会社の概況
	１管理会社の概況
	２事業の内容及び営業の概況
	３管理会社の経理状況
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書

	４利害関係人との取引制限
	５その他

	第２その他の関係法人の概況
	１名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	２関係業務の概要
	３資本関係

	第３投資信託制度の概要
	第４参考情報
	第５その他

	監査報告書

